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President’s Message
Mohinder Singh
I am happy to report that the construction works for the refurbishment
of the SKA building have been completed. This was a major undertaking
since it involved the upgrading of an old building constructed nearly 45
years ago. Further details regarding the building construction works are
provided in the Building Upgrade report.

of youngsters competed in the very competitive National Football
League Div 1 after being promoted in the previous season. They will
be playing in the Island Wide League next season. The Netball Team
entered a team for the National League after many years and played in
Div 8. The annual Gurdwara Cup tournament was held from 1 June
to 4 June 2016. SKA participated in hockey, soccer, netball and golf.
They performed well winning two Championship trophies for Soccer
(Seniors) and Golf individual, and 3 Fair play trophies by our Soccer
(Senior & Junior teams) and Hockey (Junior Team).

I am sure I join our members in eagerly anticipating the completion of
the upgrading works. I thank them for their patience over the period
the building and its facilities was unavailable for their social needs.
I also wish to thank the members for their continuous support and
encouragement in seeing the works through to their completion and
overcoming the many construction challenges along the way. Your
support motivated the Building Committee greatly in its commitment
to transforming an old building into a spanking new community centre
with a fresh and modern ambience that we hope members will feel
proud of, and bring their families and friends to.

The Ladies Wing of SKA continues to play a central role in meeting
the social and cultural needs of our community. This year, there was
peak participation in the Lohri and Teeyan celebrations they organized.
I applaud and commend the vibrant Ladies Wing for their untiring
efforts and commitment to meeting the needs within our community.
The Khalsa Kindergarten continues to provide quality preschool
education. Its enrollment has increased to over 300 students. As part of
its efforts to impart quality education, it has put in place processes to
obtain the Pre-school Accreditation Framework (SPARK) certification,
which is an evaluation framework to recognise good practices in
preschool education. Congratulations Khalsa Kindergarten! The 24th
Graduation and Awards ceremony was held on 15 October 2016. The
Annual Concert was held on 22 October 2016. During both events,
the students showcased their talent in putting up vibrant multi-cultural
performances. A new event, the Mother Tongue Symposium 2016, was
held on 26 September 2016 at Suntec City. Students were taken on
field trips to various places of interest such as the Philatelic Museum,
Jacob Ballas Garden, Land Transport Gallery, Marina Barrage, the
Zoo, etc. These trips exposed the students to new knowledge and
learning in a fun and cheerful way. Thank you principal and staff of
the kindergarten.

I should add that the work does not stop with the completion of
physical construction of the building. The next, and critical, stage is to
outfit the building and optimise the use of its spaces and facilities to
conduct more activities and maximise revenue generation. The tender
for operating the restaurant on the third floor has been awarded to
Moghul Mahal who have begun outfitting the kitchen and restaurant.
The tender for the gymnasium on the ground floor has also been
awarded. I urge members to patronise the restaurant and gymnasium,
bringing their families and friends with them. Take part in healthy
lifestyle activities with your children, engendering their interest in lifelong sports and outdoor activities. Your support is essential in ensuring
the success of the gymnasium and the food and beverage facilities in
the building.
We welcome feedback from members on how we can maximise the
potential of the renovated building and its facilities to meet their
needs and that of the Sikh community. This is your building, and your
support is pivotal in establishing the SKA as a central place for the Sikh
community to meet and hold social, cultural and sporting activities. Our
vision is that the SKA will be the social and family club that members
will instinctively gravitate towards when planning their activities and
events. With your support, we hope that the SKA building will become
an iconic symbol of the Sikh community in Singapore.

The Association has been active in playing our part in the National
Integration effort. Through the efforts of the Ladies Wing, women
from the different expatriate and immigrant communities were invited
to participate in making authentic Punjabi breads, such as chapatti,
paratha and puri. This provided an excellent platform for these ladies
to better understand Punjabi culture and heritage. SKA will represent
the Sikh community in the Community Involvement Programme
(CEP), a component of Chingay 2017. The Association will participate
by carrying 4 WeCare Singapore Banners with a pledge to integrate
through Sports and Culture. The banners have been printed and we
will invite the community to sign them as their commitment to this
pledge.

While the focus for the past year has, understandably, been on
the building refurbishment works, it has not detracted from our
commitment to carrying out all the other activities in the SKA’s
calendar of events.
The Vesakhi Mela was held on Sunday, 29 May 2016, at the field next to
the SKA building. Dr Janil Puthucheary, Minister of State for Ministry
of Communications and Information & Ministry of Education was our
Guest-of-Honour (in place of Minister Heng Swee Keat who was taken
ill) for the event. The signature Mela event reflects SKA’s commitment
to keeping the rich Punjabi cultural heritage alive and to share it with
other communities in Singapore.

The overall financial position of the Association has understandably
been strained as a result of the money committed to the building works.
The closure of the building for nearly two years, moreover, affected
the revenue we would otherwise have received from function hall
bookings and rental from the restaurant and other facilities. This was
not unexpected. The Management Committee is confident, however,
that with the SKA’s opening there will be a surge in demand for the
function halls, particularly the two grand ballrooms. In fact, during the
renovation, we were approached by numerous people, hoping to make
bookings, reflecting the attractiveness of the SKA premises. We also
hope to attract more non-traditional bookings, such as for seminars,
dance classes, yoga classes, etc. While we will enhance our marketing
efforts, we also look to you for your support in spreading the word to
friends and colleagues to come and hold their functions at SKA.

The sporting activities that began in the morning had soccer, hockey
and netball competitions, while Pool and Golf were played earlier in
the week. The cultural component featured performances by both
local and foreign artistes, including our talented brothers and sisters
from Punjab now working in Singapore. A renowned Punjabi group
was brought in with the support of the Indian High Commission and
entertained everyone with Punjabi folk songs and plays. The group also
put on a special show for members on Saturday, 28 May 2016. The
Heritage Corner organized by the SKA Ladies Wing displaying Punjabi
breads attracted a lot of attention from visitors, including non-Sikhs.

In closing, I thank all the members of the Management Committee, the
patrons, the trustees, the Building Committee members, the donors
and the many volunteers and well-wishers who have walked shoulderto-shoulder with us on our journey to refurbish the old building. My
sincere gratitude to all.

On the sporting front, I am happy to report that we were represented
by two teams in the National Hockey League (NHL). The 1st team in
NHL 1 and the 2nd in NHL 3. The NHL 3 team was promoted to NHL
2 because of their good performance. The soccer team made up mainly

Wahe Guru Ji Ka Khalsa, Wahe Guru JI Ki Fateh
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SKA Remembers Santokh Singh
His contributions:
• past chairman of the Singapore Sikh Education Foundation - an appointment he had
readily undertaken at the request of Mr Inderjit Singh, former Member of Parliament.
• Santokh also served SKA in the capacity of chairman of Young Khalsa
• He joined the SKA Management Committee in 2010. “He established rapport with the Sikh
youth leaders of the tertiary institutions and asked what SKA could do for them to promote
interaction in sports and culture. This led to the organization of the inter-university
football games and a bhangra competition among other activities at SKA premises,” SKA’s
immediate past president.
It is an odd feeling to attend our regular
Management Committee (MC) meetings
and not recall the late Santokh Singh
who would be noticeable regardless of
where he sat. The past year was a trying
time as the SKA MC grappled with one
issue after another that seemed to crop
up during the major renovation works
being undertaken. He was always there
on time and usually had some points to
raise on the matters to be discussed.
I recall the questions he posed as we
went through the various contracts
or tenders in preparation for the reopening – always clarifying and adding
insights. It was therefore with more
than just a little disbelief that I asked
if the message I had received from an
MC member at 10:08pm on the 3rd
of June was true. Confirmations came
in fast from other members on the
committee’s WhatsApp chat. Even now
it is a little surreal as I scroll back up
those messages. My last message from
him at 6:17 pm has him checking up on
the leaders of the various sports teams
at the 65th Gurdwara Cup that began
on 1st June.

• In 2013, Santokh chaired the organising committee for the Harmony Games, which fall
under the ambit of the Ministry of Culture Community and Youth, through SKA and on
behalf of the Sikh Community,
• Past President of  SKA LTC (R) Charanjit Singh, said. “At SKA, he has been a good contributor
to our discussions of affairs and was a man of pragmatic ideas.   Whenever asked to take
the lead in organizing activities like the recent (Vesakhi) Mela, Santokh could be counted
on to deliver a good outcome.”
of the main means by which the SKA
reaches out to the youth and engages
the community.
Malminderjit Singh president of the
Young Sikh Association (YSA), sums it
well in his 10th June article in the tabla!
The Sikh community had plans for
“
Santokh to take on more leadership
roles going forward… I recently wrote
to invite him to chair an important task
force we had set-up on a new initiative.
His commitment to the community
meant that he accepted immediately.
We were going to meet soon for lunch
to discuss this and other matters, but it
was never meant to be.

”

As one news article later put it, “It
was all too sudden, and certainly too
early. He was only 57. Santokh, who
left journalism in 2012 for Nanyang
Polytechnic to become its director for
communications and outreach, was also
a respected community leader..”
Many will recall him as he led the
Harmony Games last year and the
annual Vesakhi Mela this year. He was
a pillar of the Sikh community, always
there when help was needed.
Santokh came across as a person of
pragmatic ideas and a genuine concern
for the well-being of the Sikh community

and especially youths and sports – one
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Such was the reach and influence of
Santokh that at his funeral the hall was
packed to the point that the doors
could not be opened to get in. Many
had to be content to remain outside the
hall to share their personal thoughts of
this stalwart of the Sikh Community and
the sports fraternity.
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Patrons

Kartar Singh
Thakral

Naranjan Singh
Bhrampura

Board of Trustees

BACK ROW
(Standing) Left to Right: Param Ajeet Singh Bal, Jagjit Singh Sekhon, Balbeer Singh Mangat
FRONT ROW
(Seating) Left to Right: COL (Retd) Gurcharan Singh Sekhon, Gurdip Singh Usma,
LTC (Retd) Jaswant Singh Gill, Ajit Singh
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Mindar Kaur

Lela Kaur
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SKA Building Report
SKA Building Committee

SKA Building Upgrade Report
In the late 60’s, the main motivation
in development of the Singapore
Khalsa Association (SKA) building
was to serve as a centralised location
for teaching of Punjabi language
and promote Punjabi culture, in
addition to sports, cultural and
social activities. Over the years the
teaching of Punjabi has been helmed
by the Singapore Sikh Education
Foundation. Sikh weddings, the
religious component which were
previously held at SKA, are now rightfully taking place in the renovated Sikh Gurdwaras. SKA’s role now is primarily
to serve the sporting, cultural and social needs of the community. However, SKA continues to run the popular Khalsa
Kindergarten, at SINDA premises, at Beatty Road.
As SKA’s role has evolved, the requirement to refurbish the SKA building has long been desired by the community.
The building is ready after almost 2 years of makeover. This is a major upgrade of the building to provide the facilities
necessary to meet every growing need of the Sikh community as well as other community groups that utilise the buildings
space. The intention is for the premises to provide a welcoming atmosphere that also encourages integration of the larger
Singaporean community.
The ground breaking ceremony to commence construction work was held on 22nd November 2014. However, the physical
construction work to refurbish the building commenced in February 2015 as a temporary structure had to be constructed
to house the Jackpot Room and the SKA office. This temporary structure was built on the existing turf area. The first
three months of work were devoted to demolition work comprising stripping of the ceilings and partition walls from 1st
storey to 5th storey, dismantling of existing canopy, awnings, fencing, etc. All the demolition and stripping works were
completed in July 2015.
In the process of demolition
and stripping works it was found
that there was a need to re-plan
because of unforeseen site
conditions where strengthening
of the structural elements of the
existing building was required.
As we eventually discovered
over the course of works, the
existing concrete strength was
inconsistent, specifically the
tests of existing beams and
concrete floor slabs uncovered
that the concrete strength was
very poor and some slabs were
6
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only 75mm thick in most areas of the building’s floors, which was unacceptable by current building standards. To remedy
this there was a need to strengthen all columns, beams and floor slabs through extensive hacking including additional
piling works to carry a higher building load.
Over and above the aforesaid, there was a need to make the building more user and elder friendly through provision of
ramps, non-slip handrails, alarm alerts for the visually impaired, etc.
The original budget approved for the refurbishment works was found to be grossly inadequate and the Building Committee
had to seek approvals from our members to increase the budget due to increase in construction costs to ensure we have a
structurally sound building to last for generations.
With Waheguru’s blessings, the new building has been completed in November 2016. The new building façade provides a
brand-new look and image that befits SKA’s objectives. In the main the community will be delighted to see the following
major changes:
a.

A senior member’s relaxation area and gymnasium at Level 1.

b.

A larger floor space at Level 2 to cater for banquets. This multi-purpose hall has been named “Lee Foundation
Hall” as a show of the Sikh community’s gratitude to Lee Foundation for their substantial donations over the years
as well as unwavering support in ensuring that our small but significant Sikh community has a cultural centre.

c.

Level 3 has been rented to our new caterer, Ms Moghul Mahal Pte Ltd, to set-up their restaurant, lounge and
kitchen. The interior décor and finishing at Level 3 will be undertaken by the caterer and expected to be completed
by end December 2016.

d.

The SKA Boardroom, dance studio, and a function room is located at Level 4.

e.

Level 5 houses a fully carpeted ballroom.

f.

Level 6 is an open area for outdoor activities.

To mark the completion of the building works, Kirtan and Ardas was held on 10 Nov 2016 at the new boardroom.
We are thankful to all those who made valuable contributions to the Building Fund. Our immense gratitude as well to
the Lee Foundation which once again made a hefty donation and over the years has continually provided the community
unwavering support.
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Sports Report
Sarjit Singh Sona
Chairman Sports
HOCKEY
SKA hockey took part in various tournaments this year. Two teams played in the SHF sanctioned tournaments, the NHL 1
and NHL 3 respectively. The NHL 3 team was promoted to NHL 2. Some of the other tournaments SKA Hockey took part
in was the NJL 2(1st), Liga Junior and Senior. We have managed to keep our Junior development training which is held at
Khalsa every Wednesday from 6.30 pm -8.30 pm very much alive with a good turnout of 15 youngsters including 10 Sikh boys
NETBALL
SKA Netball team participated in the National League organized by Netball Singapore. The team was placed in Division 8. The
team of new and young players, played its best to make every centre pass, every turnover and every rebound count. Given the
teams unwavering determination and discipline it will certainly achieve more success in subsequent league matches.
SOCCER
The team made up of young players with some senior players as mentors participated in the NFL Division 1 The of youngsters
who were promoted to NFL 1 the previous seasons finished in 8th position and lost to Starlight team 1-0 in a playoff to be
relegated to the island wide league. . Youth development training is held every Wednesday from 6.30 pm to 8.30 pm with
twenty Sikh players.
SSEF –SKA SPORTS CARNIVAL
The Annual SSEF –SKA sports carnival was held on 12th March 2016, at the SKA grounds witnessed more than four
hundred young Sikh boys and girls playing their hearts out at the second SSEF- SKA sports carnival. The students competed
in various age group categories in Hockey, Netball and Soccer. The carnival was such a tremendous success that parents called
for more such events. The event also provided SKA a fertile ground to talent spot student for its annual Gurdwara-Cup.
65th GURDWARA CUP –SIKH FESTIVAL OF SPORTS
The annual 65th Gurdwara Cup also known as Sikh Festival of sports 2016 was held in Seremban from 1st June to 4th June
2016. The contingent of 80 players and officials participated in all events except badminton and won Two championship and
Three Fair Play Trophies. The results are as follows.
Soccer Senior - Champion and Fair play trophy
Soccer Juniors - Third and Fair play trophy
Hockey Junior – Runners up and Fair play trophy
Hockey Seniors- Third
Netball – Third
Golf Individual - Champion Sushminder Singh
Golf Team - Third
Vesakhi Mela – Sports Carnival
As part of our Vesakhi celebrations a Vesakhi Sports Carnival which involved the other Singaporean communities was held on
29 May 2016 at the association’s premises.
In Soccer, a total of 38 teams participated in five different categories namely; Under 12, Under 17, Veterans, Men’s Open and
Ladies Open. In Hockey, a total of 7teams participate in two categories the Open and Under 15. Netball was organized for the
Open category with 3 teams.
The Vesakhi 8-Ball Pool Championship was held on Sunday, 15th May 2016 at the Ceylon Sports Club, and the Vesakhi Golf
tournament was held on Friday, 25th May 2016 at the Sembawang Country Club.
8
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Education Report
Kuldip Singh
Chairman Education
The popularity of the kindergarten continues with enrolment figures reaching full capacity and with several applicants on the
waiting list. 2016 was yet another busy but fulfilling year both for our students, their parents and teachers alike.
SPARK ACCREDITION
The Spark accreditation from the Early Childhood Development Agency testifies to the high teaching standards and
quality learning environment in the kindergarten. We have successfully met MOE’s stringent regulatory and quality control
requirements. Amongst others, the quality of our teaching staff, teaching materials and methodology plus a holistic learning
experience have contributed to our successful accreditation.
24th GRADUATION DAY
A total of about 200 K2 children and their families attended the 24th graduation and awards ceremony held on 15 October.
CEO SINDA Mr Barathan was the Guest of Honour. The Management team from SKA and the kindergarten teaching staff
hosted this annual event which was well received by all the guests.
ANNUAL CONCERT
The annual concert cum party was held on 22 October for K1 and nursery students and their families. A professional concert
and colourful dances entertained the guests. The dances were choreographed by the talented teachers themselves. The Guest
of Honour, President SKA Mohinder Singh, presented loyalty service awards to teachers and administrators, and certificates
to children who had successfully completed their swimming proficiency tests.
NEW EVENTS
Our kindergarten teachers participated in the Mother Tongue Languages Symposium 2016 held on 20 September at Suntec
City. Here we showcased our continual efforts and progress in the promotion of mother tongues. Whilst our medium of
instruction is English, the 3 MTL options we offer are Punjabi, Tamil and Hindi. The exhibition increased public awareness
and understanding of MTL as a living language and provided useful strategies for students, educators and parents alike.
Our students were also selected to participate in the 1st ever Show & Tell Competition organised by the Science Centre
Singapore. The theme was marine conservation and participating students received certificates and goody bags.
FIELD TRIPS AND COMMUNITY EVENTS
The kindergarten students were accompanied on field trips to the Philatelic Museum, Jacob Ballas Garden, Land Transport
Authority, Hay Diary Farm, Hydroponics farm, Marina Barrage, Fire Station and the Zoological Gardens. The trips exposed
the students to new knowledge and realistic environments amidst the fun and cheer of such outings.
Our students also performed at community events such as the Kg Glam Tamil New Year event, Vesakhi Mela at SKA, Serangoon
Light Up and at the Gardens by the Bay during the Diwali period.
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Social & Cultural Report
Jaswant Kaur
Chairperson Culture
Vesakhi Mela
As the renovations were ongoing the cultural activities were limited to the Vesakhi Mela which was held on Sunday, 29th
May 2016 at the Singapore Khalsa Association (SKA). The Guest of Honour was Dr Janil Puthucheary, Minister of State,
Ministry of Communications and Information & Ministry of Education. The theme for Vesakhi Mela 2016 was “Together
with Singapore, The Next Lap”.
The key activities included stage shows with audience participation, heritage corner of Authentic Punjabi Breads with
participation by members of other communities, traditional food stalls. In addition, a Kabaddi competition was held to attract
and engage the non-local Punjabi workers in Singapore, to further facilitate their interaction with the locals. The immigrant
community was also actively involved in many of the cultural events that were held during the Mela festivities.
There were more than 6,000 participants and spectators. The crowds streamed in from early morning hours for the sports
activities and from mid-day for the cultural activities. There was a very positive response from the Punjabi foreign workers as
well as the new immigrants.
Cultural Show
A play entitled “A Wife’s Letter” was presented by “The Company” lead by Mdm Neelam Man Singh Chowdhury, Chairperson,
Department of Indian Theatre, Punjab University, Chandigarh, was held on Saturday, 28th May 2016, exclusively for SKA
members. About 200 members attended the show.
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Ladies Wing Report
Prof. Berinderjeet Kaur
Chairperson, Ladies Wing
In line with our vision and mission, the Singapore Khalsa Association (SKA) Ladies Wing continued its focus on organising
events that revolved around the theme of people. In particular, the SKA Ladies Wing leveraged on the networking platforms
for wider engagement of Sikh women in Singapore, consequently increasing awareness and understanding among them of
exercise, health and active ageing, the gift of providing for the less privileged women in society, and Punjabi heritage and
culture.
Our flagship, Chair Yoga programme that was initiated ten years ago continues to be well-received by participants. This
programme signifies a long-standing partnership between Ladies Wing and Khalsa Dharmak Sabha. It continues to encourage
women to prioritise their physical and mental well-being so that they age more gracefully by adopting positive behavioural
changes in their lives. To enhance the programme, we have developed our volunteers professionally to conduct the lessons.
Participants and volunteers have benefitted from the lessons. Besides the lessons. Meaningful activities are also organised for
the participants, who are mainly from the pioneer generation of Singapore. This year, following the second cycle of yoga, four
sessions were conducted to share with the Pioneers’ tips on healthy eating, women’s health, ayurvedic medicine and yoga, and
personal grooming. The enthusiastic participation of the Pioneers fired the passion of the volunteers to do more for them in
the coming years!
Ladies Wing committee steered Sikh women’s participation in the Chingay 2016 Community Engagement Programme. They
organised the women to decorate and pen national values on bulb-shaped Sky Lanterns that were used during Chingay festival
to decorate public spaces. Gurmit Kaur and Malkit Kaur represented the committee at the CHINGAY 2016 Media Conference
on 7th January 2016. During the annual Mela event, the SKA Ladies Wing invited women from the migrant societies and
involved them in making authentic Punjabi breads, namely chapatti, paratha and puri. The heartening participation of ladies
from the migrant societies has inspired the committee to explore ways of engaging with them on aspects of culture and heritage.
Participation by the Sikh community in our signature cultural events, Lohri, and Teeyan, has grown over the years with an
increasing number of younger ladies and their inter-generational families attending these events. This has motivated the Ladies
Wing to organise and support events that serve as a platform for keeping families connected with the community at large.
Ladies Wing has continued to lend support to social events organised by the Istri Sat Sang of Central Sikh Gurdwara, such as
the one-day trip to Johor Baru in Celebration of Diwali on 24th October 2016.
The SKA Ladies Wing would like to express their appreciation to the SKA Management Committee; the various temples and
Sikh institutions such as the Sikh Centre, members of the community as well as other stakeholders without whom they would
not have achieved such success.
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Financial Statement Review
Darshan Singh
Treasurer

Summary of Operating Revenue and Expenditure
Since October 2014 the association’s main revenue streams located within the premises have ceased operations apart from the
fruit machines, due the building refurbishmnet and renovation works.
Net revenue from the fruit machines has decreased by about 50% as compared to the previous year resulting in a 26% decrease
in total income collected. Patrons to our fruit machines have declined over time largely due to accessibility issues as a direct
result of the ongoing major renovations. Our nearest competitors have also been diligent in changing their machines on a
regular basis and this has affected our overall patronage.
The fruit machine revenue is highly sensitive to changes in the overall economic situation in Singapore. The fall in oil prices
have affected certain sectors of our economy as well as the stock market resulting in job losses. Such sentiments will, going
forward, have a further dampening effect on our fruit machine revenue.
Membership fees income have seen a substantial increase as compared to the previous financial year in anticipation of the
completion of the renovations. Efforts by the SKA MC in increasing the number of new members in the lower age group are
bearing fruit. The MC will continue to encourage younger members to join SKA .
Revenue from Khalsa Kindergarten is also down by around 20% despite the increase in fees of about 3.5%. The increase in
term fees and other related income has been offset by a substantial increase in wage costs which has increased by 25%
Overall, the cost of operations of the association as compared with the year ended 30.6.2015 is down by about 10% largely due
to the decrease in depreciation charges.

Fixed Assets and Building Renovation
All Fixed assets for Plant and Equipment of the Association has been written off with the exception of the fruit machines as
the major renovation is in progress as at the financial year end date. The total renovation cost to date has been capitalized as
construction in progress at an amount of S$8,615,705. The balance sheet shows capital commitments for the construction to
a tune of S$884,295.00
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Financial Statement Review

Income & Expenditure 2015 / 2016
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Report of
the Board of Trustees
Gurdip Singh Usma
Chairman, Board of Trustees
GENERAL
The Singapore Khalsa Association Trust Fund was set up in 1959 with the objective to invest some of the funds in the
Association (savings) to provide for its longer terms growth requirements. The initial capital of the Trust Fund was $25,000 and
was put under the charge of the SKA Trustees. Over the years SKA contributed towards this capital with further injections of
$99,000 in the 1970s and $453,000 in the 1980s making a total of $577,000 in capital. The balance of the growth of the Trust
Fund has come from reinvestment of its earnings and capital growth of the investments made.
The current Board of Trustees comprises:
		Chairman
		
Vice Chairman
		
Secretary
		
Members
				
				
				

: S. Gurdip Singh Usma
: Col (Retd) Gurcharan Singh Sekhon
: S. Ajit Singh
: LTC (Retd) Jaswant Singh Gill
S. Jagjit Singh Sekhon
S. Balbeer Singh Mangat
S. Param Ajeet Singh Bal

In January 2016, the SKA Board of Trustees appointed an Investment Committee (appointment for a period of 3 years) to
advise the Trustees in connection with the management of the Trust Fund assets. The members of the Investment Committee
are as follows:
Chairman
		
Secretary
		
Members
				
				
				
				

: S. Gurdip Singh Usma
: S. Balbeer Singh Mangat
: Col (Retd) Gurcharan Singh Sekhon
S. Inderjit Singh
S. Mandeep Singh Nalwa
S. Rasik Singh Ahuja
S. Harpreet Singh

VALUE OF SKA TRUST FUND
Nearly all the investments of SKA Trustees are in bonds and shares of public listed companies quoted on the Singapore Stock
Exchange and the general philosophy of the Trustees in selecting its investment companies has been that of conservatism
and long term view. The Investment Committee, in consultation with our investment bankers provides the guidance in the
investment decisions made by Trustees for the Trust Fund..
The value of the SKA Investment Fund had steadily grown over time and had grown to almost $14 million as of the end of the
Fiscal Year 2014. Most of this growth has come in the last 15 years or so resulting from the general growth of the Singapore
economy, the growth of the investment companies and the bullish stock market. The financial crisis in 2008 did result in a
drop to around $8.5 million, but the subsequent stock market recovery has more than recovered that shortfall.
At the various SKA General Meetings, the members had approved major renovations to the SKA Building amounting to $9.5
million, of which the Trustees would fund $7.5 million. This amount has been fully disbursed with $2 million being disbursed
in Fiscal 2015 and $5.5 million disbursed in the current fiscal year. The drop in the Trust Fund value over the past 2 years
primarily reflects this disbursement of funds.
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SKA Trust Fund Value
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SKA TRUST FUND NET OPERATING INCOME
The SKA Investment Fund has been steadily generating dividend income over the years. Our general strategy
over the last five years has been to invest more in defensive and higher dividend yielding stocks, which has helped
improve this source of income. In view of this, we have been able to generate a steady flow of dividend income
of approx 4% on an annual basis. The drop in Operating Income in 2015 and 2016 is due to the reduction in
the value of the Fund due to the $7.5 million disbursement for the SKA Building Renovations referred to above.
With the major reduction in the size of the fund due to payments for the SKA Renovations, we expect to see the
operating income reducing significantly from 2017 onwards.

SKA Trust Fund Operating Income
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SKA TRUST FUND INVESTMENT HOLDINGS ANALYSIS
The general philosophy of the Trustees has been to spread our investments in various asset types and with a longer term view
of steady growth and reasonable yield. We have attempted to stay away from speculative companies, which may generate better
growth but at a higher risk. The analysis below shows that our major investments are in various categories of Real Estate
Investment Trusts (REITs), Finance and Media, which are generally less volatile and provide a good yield.

SKA TRUST FUND INVESTMENT HOLDINGS
BY SECTOR (% Mix) & HOLDINGS DETAILS

An analysis of the Trust Fund by sector / industry and the companies in which the Trust Fund is holding shares / units as at
30th June 2016 in each of the sectors / industries is as follows:

Sector &
Company Name

CASH
FINANCE
DBS Bank
OCBC Bank
UOB Bank
MARINE
Keppel Corporation
MEDIA
SPH Holdings
PROPERTIES
Capitaland
City Developments
REITs – Commercial
Keppel REIT
Mapletree GCC Trust
Capitamall Trust
REITs – Industrial
Mapletree Logistics Trust
Cache Logistics Trust
Ascendas REIT
REITs – Others
Ascott Residence Trust
TOTAL

18

Value
(S‘000)
4

743
634
719
484
592
436
266
309
303
266
310
172
257
262
$5,736
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SINGAPORE KHALSA ASSOCIATION AND ITS TRUSTEES
(Registration No: 43-0000747-X)

Management Committee’s Report
and Financial Statements
Year Ended 30 June 2016
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Statement by the Management Committee
Singapore Khalsa Association and its Trustees (Registration No: 43-0000747-X)
In the opinion of the Management Committee,
(a) the accompanying statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of financial
position, statement of changes in funds, statement of cash flows, and notes thereto are drawn up so as
to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Singapore Khalsa Association (“association”) and
its Trustees as at 30 June 2016 and of the results, changes in funds and cash flows of the Association
and its Trustee for the reporting year ended; and
(b) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the association and its
Trustees will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.
The Management Committee approved and authorised these financial statements for issue.

On behalf of the Management Committee,

...........................................………....
Mohinder Singh
President

...........................................………....
Gurrinder Singh Johal
Vice President

...........................................………....
Sukhbir Singh
General Secretary

...........................................………....
Darshan Singh
General Treasurer

23 September 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Singapore Khalsa Association and its Trustees (Registration No: 43-0000747-X)
Report on the financial statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Singapore Khalsa Association and its Trustees
(“association”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2016, the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in funds and statement of cash flows for the
reporting year then ended, and significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management committee’s responsibility for the financial statements
Management committee is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with the provisions of the Societies Act (the “Act”) and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards,
and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are
properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair financial
statements and to maintain accountability of assets.
Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Singapore Khalsa Association and its Trustees (Registration No: 43-0000747-X)
– 2 –

Opinion
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions
of the Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the association and its Trustees as at 30 June 2016 and the financial performance, changes in funds
and cash flows of the association for the reporting year ended on that date.
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the regulations enacted under the Societies Act
to be kept by the Society have been properly kept in accordance with those regulations.
Other matter
In addition, there are no profits from private lotteries accrued to any individuals and also no commission either
in money or money’s worth including by way of free tickets or chances was paid in respect of the sales tickets or
chances.

RSM Chio Lim LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore
23 September 2016
Partner in charge of audit: Ng Thiam Soon
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
Year Ended 30 June 2016
Note
Association
Income
Membership fees
Interest income
Takings from billiards room, net
Takings from restaurant and lounge, net
Takings from fruit machines, net
Takings from function halls, net
Takings from khalsa kindergarten, net
Takings from sports and facilities, net
Donations for building funds
Other income

4
5
6
7
8
9
19
10

Expenditure

11

Net deficit
Income tax expense
Net deficit after income tax
Transfer to building funds

13
19

Net deficit before appropriation
Appropriation from SKA trustees
Net surplus/(deficit) after appropriation
Trustees
Income
Dividend income
Interest income
Gain on disposals of investments
Expenditure
Administrative expenses
Agent’s fees
Other losses

Net surplus
Fair value loss on available-for-sale assets
Net surplus before appropriation
Appropriation to Singapore Khalsa Association
Net deficit after appropriation

2016
$
11,935
2,093
–
–
242,718
–
67,987
30,232
49,900
59,678
464,543
(594,784)

4,252
1,421
6,878
50,966
444,240
47,575
86,979
58,942
241,000
78,700
1,020,953
(1,068,751)

(130,241)
(53,894)
(184,135)
(49,900)

(47,798)
(67,734)
(115,532)
(241,000)

(234,035)
–
(234,035)

(356,532)
68,667
(287,865)

450,472
36
1,522,835
1,973,343

510,988
29
170,092
681,109

–
(14,350)
–
(14,350)

(4,000)
(20,188)
(5,350)
(29,538)

1,958,993
(2,982,363)
(1,023,370)
(5,500,000)
(6,523,370)

651,571
(203,820)
447,751
(2,068,667)
(1,620,916)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2016

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Available-for-sale financial assets
Total non-current assets
Current assets
Other receivables
Other assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Note

2016
$

2015
$

14
15

9,334,050
5,732,157
15,066,207

2,383,452
11,975,833
14,359,285

16
17
18

237,501
16,463
366,653

108,408
8,056
2,657,275

620,617

2,773,739

15,686,824

17,133,024

611,776
9,670,717
550,000
2,965,131
13,797,624
1,643,545
15,441,169

2,064,145
2,902,483
475,000
6,581,138
12,022,766
4,625,908
16,648,674

73,720
171,935
245,655

43,286
441,064
484,350

245,655

484,350

15,686,824

17,133,024

Total current assets
Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Funds:
General fund
Building fund
Lease fund
Trust fund retained by SKA Trustee
Total funds
Fair value reserve
Total equity

19
19
19
19

Current liabilities
Income tax payable
Trade and other payables
Total current liabilities

20

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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–
1,218,334

–

(1,218,334)

2,902,483

–

–

2,064,145

2,000,000

68,667
475,000

75,000

–

–

–

400,000

550,000

–

75,000

–

–

–

475,000

$

fund

Lease

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Closing balance at 30 June 2015

241,000

–

661,483

–

(356,532)

Net (deficit)/surplus for the year

Donations received (Note 19)
Appropriation to Singapore Khalsa
Association
Transfer to lease fund

2,352,010

9,670,717

5,500,000

–

611,776

49,900

–

–

Opening balance at 1 July 2014

Previous year:

Closing balance at 30 June 2016

Transfer to building fund

Donations received (Note 19)
Appropriation to Singapore Khalsa
Association
Transfer to lease fund

(234,035)

Net (deficit)/surplus for the year

2,902,483

$

$

2,064,145

fund

fund

Opening balance at 1 July 2015

Current year:

Building

General

6,581,138

(75,000)

(2,068,667)

–

651,571

8,073,234

2,965,131

–

(75,000)

(5,500,000)

–

1,958,993

6,581,138

Trust fund
retained by
SKA
Trustees
$

12,022,766

–

–

241,000

295,039

11,486,727

13,797,624

–

–

–

49,900

1,724,958

12,022,766

$

Sub total

4,625,908

–

–

–

(203,820)

4,829,728

1,643,545

–

–

–

–

(2,982,363)

4,625,908

$

reserve

Fair value

16,648,674

–

–

241,000

91,219

16,316,455

15,441,169

–

–

–

49,900

(1,257,405)

16,648,674

$

Total
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Statement of Changes in Funds
Year Ended 30 June 2016
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Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended 30 June 2016

Cash flows from operating activities
Net surplus after appropriation and before tax
- association
- SKA trustee
Operating cash flows before changes in working capital
Dividend income
Gain on disposal of investments
Depreciation of plant and equipment
Plant and equipment written off
Interest income
Transfer to building funds
Operating cash flows before changes in working capital
Other receivables
Other assets
Trade and other payables
Other liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Net cash flows (used in)/from operations before interest and
tax
Income taxes paid
Net cash flows (used in)/from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Disposal of available-for-sale assets
Dividend received
Purchase of plant and equipment
Purchase of available-for-sale assets
Cash restricted in use
Interest received
Net cash flows used in investing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, statement of cash flows, beginning
balance
Cash and cash equivalents, statement of cash flows, ending
balance (Note 18A)

2016
$

2015
$

(130,241)
(3,541,007)

20,869
(1,417,096)

(3,671,248)
(450,472)
(1,522,835)
76,585
–
(2,129)
5,500,000
(70,099)
(129,094)
(8,407)
(269,129)
–
–

(1,396,227)
(510,988)
(170,092)
120,502
405,203
(1,450)
2,000,000
446,948
(42,482)
43,956
312,095
(71,342)
(63,041)

(476,729)

626,134

(23,460)
(500,189)

(94,235)
531,899

4,896,201
450,472
(7,027,182)
(112,053)
1,000,779
2,129
(789,654)

984,587
510,988
(1,664,019)
(103,177)
(400,857)
1,450
(671,028)

(1,289,843)

(139,129)

1,646,117

1,785,246

356,274

1,646,117

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
30 June 2016
1.

General
The financial statements are presented in Singapore dollars. The financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the Management Committee on the date of statement by Management
Committee.
The principal activities of the association are to promote and carry on amateur sports, social and
cultural activities and also promote and advance the education of students.
The principal activities of the Trustees are to hold and manage the investment of the Singapore Khalsa
Association.
The registered office is: 2 Tessensohn Road, Singapore 217646. The association and its Trustees are
situated in Singapore.
Accounting convention
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Singapore Financial Reporting
Standards (“FRS”) and the related Interpretations to FRS (“INT FRS”) as issued by the Singapore
Accounting Standards Council and the Companies Act, Chapter 50. The financial statements are
prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention except where an FRS requires an
alternative treatment (such as fair values) as disclosed where appropriate in these financial statements.
Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting year. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. The estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Apart
from those involving estimations, management has made judgements in the process of applying the
entity’s accounting policies. The areas requiring management’s most difficult, subjective or complex
judgements, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are
disclosed at the end of this footnote, where applicable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
30 June 2016
2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

2A. Significant accounting policies
Revenue recognition
The revenue amount is the fair value of the consideration received or receivable from the gross inflow
of economic benefits during the reporting year arising from the course of the ordinary activities of the
entity and it is shown net of related sales taxes and rebates. Revenue from rendering of services that
are of short duration is recognised when the services are completed. Rental revenue is recognised on
a time-proportion basis that takes into account the effective yield on the asset on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Interest is recognised using the effective interest method. Dividend from equity
instruments is recognised as income when the entity’s right to receive payment is established. Income
from fruit machines is recognised on a cash collection basis.
Employee benefits
Contributions to a defined contribution retirement benefit plan are recorded as an expense as they fall
due. The entity’s legal or constructive obligation is limited to the amount that it agrees to contribute to
an independently administered fund (such as the Central Provident Fund in Singapore, a government
managed defined contribution retirement benefit plan). For employee leave entitlement the expected
cost of short-term employee benefits in the form of compensated absences is recognised in the case of
accumulating compensated absences, when the employees render service that increases their entitlement
to future compensated absences; and in the case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the
absences occur. A liability for bonuses is recognised where the entity is contractually obliged or where
there is constructive obligation based on past practice.
Foreign currency transactions
The functional currency is the Singapore dollar as it reflects the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates. Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in the functional currency at the rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. At each end of the reporting year, recorded monetary balances
and balances measured at fair value that are denominated in non-functional currencies are reported
at the rates ruling at the end of the reporting year and fair value measurement dates respectively. All
realised and unrealised exchange adjustment gains and losses are dealt with in profit or loss except when
recognised in other comprehensive income and if applicable deferred in equity such as for qualifying
cash flow hedges. The presentation is in the functional currency.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
30 June 2016
2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (continued)

2A.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Income tax
The income taxes are accounted using the asset and liability method that requires the recognition of
taxes payable or refundable for the current year and deferred tax liabilities and assets for the future
tax consequence of events that have been recognised in the financial statements or tax returns. The
measurements of current and deferred tax liabilities and assets are based on provisions of the enacted
or substantially enacted tax laws; the effects of future changes in tax laws or rates are not anticipated.
Tax expense (tax income) is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for
the reporting year in respect of current tax and deferred tax. Current and deferred income taxes are
recognised as income or as an expense in profit or loss unless the tax relates to items that are recognised
in the same or a different period outside profit or loss. For such items recognised outside profit or loss
the current tax and deferred tax are recognised (a) in other comprehensive income if the tax is related
to an item recognised in other comprehensive income and (b) directly in equity if the tax is related to
an item recognised directly in equity. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same income tax authority. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each end of the reporting year and is reduced, if necessary, by the amount of any tax benefits
that, based on available evidence, are not expected to be realised. A deferred tax amount is recognised
for all temporary differences, unless the deferred tax amount arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction which (i) is not a business combination; and (ii) at the time of the
transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).
Property, plant and equipment
Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis to allocate the gross carrying amounts of the assets less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives of each part of an item of these assets. The annual
rates of depreciation are as follows:
Leasehold land
Leasehold interest and expenses
Plant and equipment

-

2%
3.33%
10% to 33.33%

An asset is depreciated when it is available for use until it is derecognised even if during that period the
item is idle. Fully depreciated assets still in use are retained in the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
30 June 2016
2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (continued)

2A.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost on initial recognition and after initial recognition at
cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. The gain or loss arising
from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item and is recognised
in profit or loss. The residual value and the useful life of an asset is reviewed at least at each end of
the reporting year and, if expectations differ significantly from previous estimates, the changes are
accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate, and the depreciation charge for the current and
future periods are adjusted.
Cost also includes acquisition cost, borrowing cost capitalised and any cost directly attributable to
bringing the asset or component to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management. Subsequent costs are recognised as an asset only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss when
they are incurred.
Leases
Whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease, it is based on the substance of the arrangement
at the inception date, that is, whether (a) fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use
of a specific asset or assets (the asset); and (b) the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.
Leases are classified as finance leases if substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
transferred to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. At the commencement
of the lease term, a finance lease is recognised as an asset and as a liability in the statement
of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments, each measured at the inception of the lease. The
discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if this is practicable to determine, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is
used. Any initial direct costs of the lessee are added to the amount recognised as an asset. The excess
of the lease payments over the recorded lease liability are treated as finance charges which are allocated
to each reporting year during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability. Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the reporting years
in which they are incurred. The assets are depreciated as owned depreciable assets. Leases where the
lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased assets are
classified as operating leases. For operating leases, lease payments are recognised as an expense in profit
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Notes to the Financial Statements
30 June 2016
2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (continued)

2A. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless another systematic basis is
representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit, even if the payments are not on that basis. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the total lease expense. Rental
income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease unless another systematic basis is representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit,
even if the payments are not on that basis. Initial direct cost incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
Impairment of non-financial assets
Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, an annual impairment test is performed
at the same time every year on an intangible asset with an indefinite useful life or an intangible asset
not yet available for use. The carrying amount of other non-financial assets is reviewed at each end
of the reporting year for indications of impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is written down
through profit or loss to its estimated recoverable amount. The impairment loss is the excess of the
carrying amount over the recoverable amount and is recognised in profit or loss. The recoverable
amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use. When the fair value less costs of disposal method is used, any available recent market
transactions are taken into consideration. When the value in use method is adopted, in assessing
the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pretax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). At each end of
the reporting year non-financial assets other than goodwill with impairment loss recognised in prior
periods are assessed for possible reversal of the impairment. An impairment loss is reversed only to
the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been measured, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
Financial assets
Initial recognition, measurement and derecognition:
A financial asset is recognised on the statement of financial position when, and only when,
the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The initial recognition
of financial assets is at fair value normally represented by the transaction price. The transaction price for
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Notes to the Financial Statements
30 June 2016
2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (continued)

2A. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
financial asset not classified at fair value through profit or loss includes the transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset. Transaction costs incurred on
the acquisition or issue of financial assets classified at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
immediately. The transactions are recorded at the trade date. When the settlement date accounting is
applied, any change in the fair value of the asset to be received during the period between the trade date
and the settlement date is recognised in net profit or loss for assets classified as trading.
Irrespective of the legal form of the transactions performed, financial assets are derecognised when they
pass the “substance over form” based on the derecognition test prescribed by FRS 39 relating to the
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership and the transfer of control. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is
currently a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
Subsequent measurement:
Subsequent measurement based on the classification of the financial assets in one of the following
categories under FRS 39 is as follows:
1.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: As at end of the reporting year date there
were no financial assets classified in this category.

2.

Loans and receivables: Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Assets that are for sale
immediately or in the near term are not classified in this category. These assets are carried at
amortised costs using the effective interest method (except that short-duration receivables with
no stated interest rate are normally measured at original invoice amount unless the effect of
imputing interest would be significant) minus any reduction (directly or through the use of an
allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility. Impairment charges are provided only
when there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. The methodology ensures that an impairment
loss is not recognised on the initial recognition of an asset. Losses expected as a result of future
events, no matter how likely, are not recognised. For impairment, the carrying
33

Singapore Khalsa Association

Annual Report 2015 / 2016

Notes to the Financial Statements
30 June 2016
2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (continued)

2A. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
amount of the asset is reduced through use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss
is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised. Typically the trade
and other receivables are classified in this category.
3.

Held-to-maturity financial assets: As at end of the reporting year date there were no financial
assets classified in this category.

4.

Available-for-sale financial assets: These are non-derivative financial assets that are designated
as available-for-sale on initial recognition or are not classified in one of the previous categories.
These assets are carried at fair value. Changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
(other than those relating to foreign exchange translation differences on monetary investments)
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate component of
equity under the heading revaluation reserves. Such reserves are reclassified to profit or loss
when realised through disposal. When there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, the
cumulative loss is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. A
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an equity
instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss, it is reversed against revaluation reserves and
is not subsequently reversed through profit or loss. However for debt instruments classified as
available-for-sale impairment losses recognised in profit or loss are subsequently reversed if an
increase in the fair value of the instrument can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the recognition of the impairment loss. For non-equity instruments classified as available-for-sale
the reversal of impairment is recognised in profit or loss. The weighted average method is used
when determining the cost basis of publicly listed equities being disposed of. The financial assets
are classified as non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of the investments
within 12 months of the end of the reporting year. Usually non-current investments in equity
shares and debt securities are classified in this category but it does not include subsidiaries, joint
ventures, or associates. Unquoted investments are stated at cost less allowance for impairment
in value where there are no market prices, and management is unable to establish fair value
by using valuation techniques except that where management can establish fair value by using
valuation techniques the relevant unquoted investments are stated at fair value. For unquoted
equity instruments impairment losses are not reversed.
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2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (continued)

2A.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include bank and cash balances, on demand deposits and any highly liquid
debt instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less. For the statement
of cash flows the item includes cash and cash equivalents less cash subject to restriction and bank
overdrafts payable on demand that form an integral part of cash management.
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition, measurement and derecognition:
A financial liability is recognised on the statement of financial position when, and only when, the
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and it is derecognised when
the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. The initial recognition of
financial liability is at fair value normally represented by the transaction price. The transaction price for
financial liability not classified at fair value through profit or loss includes the transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs incurred on
the acquisition or issue of financial liability classified at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
immediately. The transactions are recorded at the trade date. Financial liabilities including bank and
other borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless there is an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting year.
Subsequent measurement:
Subsequent measurement based on the classification of the financial liabilities in one of the following
two categories under FRS 39 is as follows:
1.

Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: Liabilities are classified in this category when they
are incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term (trading
liabilities) or are derivatives (except for a derivative that is a designated and effective hedging
instrument) or have been classified in this category because the conditions are met to use
the “fair value option” and it is used. Financial guarantee contracts if significant are initially
recognised at fair value and are subsequently measured at the greater of (a) the amount measured
in accordance with FRS 37 and (b) the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with FRS 18. All changes in fair value
relating to liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are charged to profit or loss as incurred.
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2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (continued)

2A.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
2.

Other financial liabilities: All liabilities, which have not been classified as in the previous
category fall into this residual category. These liabilities are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Trade and other payables and borrowings are usually classified in this
category. Items classified within current trade and other payables are not usually re-measured,
as the obligation is usually known with a high degree of certainty and settlement is short-term.

Fair value measurement
Fair value is taken to be the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date (that is, an exit price).
It is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement. When measuring fair value,
management uses the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability
under current market conditions, including assumptions about risk. The entity’s intention to hold an
asset or to settle or otherwise fulfil a liability is not taken into account as relevant when measuring fair
value. In making the fair value measurement, management determines the following: (a) the particular
asset or liability being measured (these are identified and disclosed in the relevant notes below); (b) for
a non-financial asset, the highest and best use of the asset and whether the asset is used in combination
with other assets or on a stand-alone basis; (c) the market in which an orderly transaction would take
place for the asset or liability; and (d) the appropriate valuation techniques to use when measuring fair
value. The valuation techniques used maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise
unobservable inputs. These inputs are consistent with the inputs a market participant may use when
pricing the asset or liability.
The fair value measurements and related disclosures categorise the inputs to valuation techniques
used to measure fair value by using a fair value hierarchy of three levels. These are recurring fair value
measurements unless state otherwise in the relevant notes to the financial statements. Level 1 inputs
are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date. Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 3 inputs are
unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. The level is measured on the basis of the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. Transfers between levels of the fair value
hierarchy are deemed to have occurred at the beginning of the reporting year. If a financial instrument
measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread or midmarket pricing that is most representative of fair value in the circumstances is used to measure fair value
regardless of where the input is categorised within the fair value hierarchy. If there is no market, or the
markets available are not active, the fair value is established by using an acceptable valuation technique.
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2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (continued)

2A.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)
The carrying values of current financial instruments approximate their fair values due to the short-term
maturity of these instruments and the disclosures of fair value are not made when the carrying amount
of current financial instruments is a reasonable approximation of the fair value. The fair values of noncurrent financial instruments may not be disclosed separately unless there are significant differences at
the end of the reporting year and in the event the fair values are disclosed in the relevant notes to the
financial statements.
Provisions
A liability or provision is recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A
provision is made using best estimates of the amount required in settlement and where the effect of the
time value of money is material, the amount recognised is the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to
passage of time is recognised as interest expense. Changes in estimates are reflected in profit or loss in
the reporting year they occur.

2B.

Critical judgements, assumptions and estimation uncertainties
There were no critical judgements made in the process of applying the accounting policies that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. There were no key
assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting year, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next reporting year.

3.

Related party relationships and transactions
FRS 24 on related party disclosures requires the reporting entity to disclose: (a) transactions with its
related parties; and (b) relationships between parents and subsidiaries irrespective of whether there
have been transactions between those related parties. A party is related to a party if the party controls,
or is controlled by, or can significantly influence or is significantly influenced by the other party.
It is not the normal practice for the members of the management committee or people connected with
them, to receive remuneration, or other benefits, from the association for which they are responsible,
or from institutions connected with the association.
There are no significant related party transactions for the financial years ended 30 June 2015 and 2016.
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4.

Takings from billiards room, net
2016
$
Rental income
Other income
Expenditure

5.

2015
$
–
–
–
–

Takings from restaurant and lounge
2016
$

2015
$
–

Rental income
6.

50,966

Takings from fruit machines, net
2016
$
Income:
Collections
Expenses:
Certification and verification fees
CPF and SDF
Depreciation of fruit machine
Private lottery duty and GST
Refreshments
Repairs and maintenance
Replenishment of coins and payouts to winners
Staff salaries and welfares
NETS transfer fees

7.

16,500
5,329
(14,951)
6,878

2015
$

2,473,594

3,372,259

(24,631)
(10,313)
(24,072)
(733,234)
(40,810)
(26,780)
(1,301,947)
(64,182)
(4,907)
242,718

(23,866)
(10,192)
(18,215)
(1,066,527)
(46,618)
(15,339)
(1,680,617)
(59,773)
(6,872)
444,240

Takings from functional halls, net
2016
$
Income:
Collections
Expenses:
Cleaning expenses
Other expenses
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2015
$
–

73,642

–
–
–

(25,987)
(80)
47,575
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8.

Takings from Khalsa Kindergarten, net
Income:
Term fees and other related income
Expenses:
Salaries
Deepavali bonus
CPF and SDF
Others

9.

2015
$

727,236

702,263

(342,407)
(24,398)
(57,392)
(235,052)
67,987

(299,163)
(38,562)
(46,127)
(231,432)
86,979

2016
$

2015
$

105,300
8,773
–
–
–
–
114,073

108,000
15,232
13,500
900
1,410
1,122
140,164

(72,000)
(8,773)
–
(3,068)
–
30,232

(52,956)
(12,831)
(2,455)
(3,980)
(9,000)
58,942

Takings from sports and facilities, net

Income:
Managing agent fees Little League
Utilities – Little League
Rental of turf – S&M
Turf maintenance
Utilities – S&M
Other sports and facilities income
Expenses:
Licence agreement fees SCRC
Utilities – Little League
Utilities – S&M
Other sports and facilities expenditure
Deposit refund

10.

2016
$

Other income

Starhub rental and utilities
Grants received
IRAS wages credits
Others
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2016
$

2015
$

26,250
11,725
21,703
59,678

37,100
21,669
14,952
4,979
78,700
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11.

Expenditure
Administration
Auditors’ remuneration
Accounting fee
Allocation of administrative expenses to Khalsa Kindergarten
Bank charges
Casual labour
Chingay 2015
CPF and SDF
Depreciation expenses
Donations:
- Ceylon Sports Club SG 50
- Naam-Rass
- Nepal Earthquake relief 2015
- SSEF
- SWC
- Singapore Indian Association
- Istri Sat Sang Singapore
- SSEF Community Dinner
General expenses
Grants receivables written off
Insurance
Meeting expenses
Plant and equipment written off
Property tax
Repairs and maintenance
Salaries and wages
Scholarship
Security expenses
Staff Diwale bonus
Stationery, postage and printing
Telephone and telex
Temporary occupation licence
Transport
Training
Utilities
Website expense
Activities
Cultural and social activities:
- Mela
Ladies wing activities:
- Other activities
Sports and recreation:
- Gurdwara Cup
- Sports (hockey,soccer, netball, golf)
- Young Khalsa
Total
40

2016
$

2015
$

18,754
3,320
(72,000)
816
–
–
19,585
52,513

20,680
1,300
(72,000)
1,158
130
4,000
17,639
102,287

–
–
–
18,000
18,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
6,924
–
17,764
6,536
–
59,710
7,860
129,403
4,100
21,600
8,700
22,182
8,965
7,691
622
–
26,558
6,694
409,297

2,000
6,000
2,100
18,000
12,000
–
–
–
16,208
15,826
25,704
6,314
405,203
59,710
44,171
109,220
6,100
34,200
10,659
18,019
6,819
6,575
1,100
2,550
46,916
3,121
933,709

59,589

(8,104)

15,908

10,043

33,988
70,906
5,096
185,487
594,784

44,848
76,221
12,034
135,042
1,068,751
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12.

Employee benefits expense

Employee benefits expense

2016
$

2015
$

569,090

517,377

87,290

73,958

656,380

591,335

Contributions to defined contribution plan
Total employee benefits expense

13.

Income tax
Components of tax expense recognise in profit or loss include:
2016
$

2015
$

Current tax expense

26,918

19,826

Under adjustments to current tax in respect of prior periods

26,976

47,908

Total income tax expense

53,894

67,734

Current tax expense

The income tax expense varied from the amount of income tax expense determined by applying the
Singapore income tax rate of 17% (2015: 17%) to surplus of income over expenditure before income tax
as a result of the following differences:
2016
$

2015
$

1,828,752

603,773

310,888

102,641

(258,045)

(62,139)

(25,925)

(20,676)

Under adjustments to tax in respect of previous periods

26,976

47,908

Total income tax expense

53,894

67,734

Surplus of income over expenditure before income tax

Income tax expense at the above rate
Not liable to tax items
Tax exemption

41

1,030,000
–
–

703,590
–
–

703,590
–

703,590

555,837
14,072
–
569,909
14,072

583,981

147,753
133,681
119,609

Costs:
At 1 July 2014
Additions
Write-off

At 1 July 2015
Additions

At 30 June 2016

Accumulated depreciation:
At 1 July 2014
Depreciation for the year
Write-off
At 1 July 2015
Depreciation for the year

At 30 June 2016

42

Carrying value:
At 1 July 2014
At 30 June 2015
At 30 June 2016
19,511
18,403
17,295

15,930

13,714
1,108
–
14,822
1,108

33,225

33,225
–

33,225
–
–

Leasehold
expenses
$

2016
2015

The depreciation expense is charged as follows:

The construction in progress is funded by building funds and trust funds in Note 19.

480,667
446,334
412,001

617,999

549,333
34,333
–
583,666
34,333

1,030,000

1,030,000
–

Leasehold
interest
$

Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold
land
$

14.

52,513
102,287

Expenditure
$

597,208
190,477
169,440

255,947

4,101,054
70,989
(3,943,168)
228,875
27,072

425,387

419,352
6,035

4,698,262
69,461
(4,348,371)

Plant and
equipment
$

24,072
18,215

Takings from
fruit machines
$

–
1,594,558
8,615,705

–

–
–
–
–
–

8,615,705

1,594,558
7,021,147

–
1,594,558
–

Construction
in
progress
$

76,585
120,502

Total
$

1,245,139
2,383,453
9,334,050

1,473,857

5,219,938
120,502
(3,943,168)
1,397,272
76,585

10,807,907

3,780,725
7,027,182

6,465,077
1,664,019
(4,348,371)

Total
$
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15.

Available-for-sale financial assets
2016
$

2015
$

11,975,833
112,053
(3,373,366)
(2,982,363)
5,732,157

12,890,970
103,177
(814,494)
(203,820)
11,975,833

Level

2016
$

2015
$

1
1

–
1,879,381

1,028,523
3,332,244

1
1
1
1
1

679,756
2,096,520
484,000
592,500
–

1,005,666
2,774,658
1,001,680
1,428,000
1,405,062

5,732,157

11,975,833

4,076,256

7,439,927

Movements during the year:
Fair value at beginning of year
Additions
Disposals
Decrease in fair value through equity
Fair value at end of year

Balance is made up of:
Investments managed by fund manager:
Hedge fund investments – High-yield debt securities
Real estate investment trust
Quoted equity shares: Singapore
Property industry
Finance industry
Marine industry
Media industry
Others
Total investments available-for-sale at fair value
through other comprehensive income
Cost of quoted equity investments

Fair value loss of S$2,982,363 (2015: S$203,820) was recognised directly in equity.
16.

Other receivables

Deposits to secure services
GST receivables
Others

17.

2016
$

2015
$

39,980
197,394
127
237,501

45,300
56,648
6,460
108,408

Other assets
2016
$
Prepayment

16,463

43

2015
$
8,056
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18.

Cash and cash equivalents
Not restricted in use
- Association
- Trustees
Restricted in use (#a)
Cash at end of the year
Interest earning balances
(#a)

2016
$

2015
$

352,047
4,227
10,379
366,653

1,362,196
283,921
1,011,158
2,657,275

10,379

1,011,158

Included in the restricted amount in use, is an amount of $10,379 (2015: $10,353) held by the
bank to cover the bank guarantee issued.

The interest earning balances are not significant.
18A.

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement:
2016
$

2015
$

366,653

2,657,275

Cash restricted in use over 3 months

(10,379)

(1,011,158)

Cash and cash equivalents for statement of cash flows
purposes at end of the year

356,274

1,646,117

Amounts as shown above

19.

Funds
Funds of the association include the following:
(i)

General fund
General Fund comprises of the accumulated surpluses generated from the current and
previous financial years, since the inception of the association.

(ii)

Building fund
Building Fund is a reserve set up to meet future renovation costs relating to the building of
the association recorded in Construction in Progress in Note 14.
During the reporting year, there were donations of $49,900 (2015: $241,000) intended for
the association’s building. These are restricted under building fund.

(iii)

Lease fund
Lease fund is maintained to be used for future redevelopment purposes of the leasehold
property occupied by SKA. The current land lease will expire in June 2028.

(vi)

Trust fund retained by SKA Trustees
Trust fund retained by SKA Trustees is retained surpluses generated from Trustees’ available-forsale assets during the current and previous financial years.
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20.

Trade and other payables

Outside parties and accrued liabilities

21.

Financial instruments: information on financial risks

21A.

Categories of financial assets and liabilities

2016
$

2015
$

171,935
171,935

441,064
441,064

The following table categorises the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities recorded at the
end of the reporting year:
2016
$
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans and receivables
Available-for-sale financial assets
At end of year
Financial liabilities:
Trade and other payables measured at amortised cost
At end of year

2015
$

366,653
237,501
5,732,157
6,336,311

2,657,275
108,408
11,975,833
14,741,516

171,935
171,935

441,064
441,064

Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these financial statements.
21B.

Financial risk management
The main purpose for holding or issuing financial instruments is to raise and manage the finances
for the entity’s operating, investing and financing activities. There are exposures to the financial risks
on the financial instruments such as credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk comprising interest
rate, currency risk and price risk exposures. Management has certain practices for the management
of financial risks. However these are not documented in formal written documents. The following
guidelines are followed: All financial risk management activities are carried out and monitored by
senior management staff. All financial risk management activities are carried out following good
market practices.
There have been no changes to the exposures to risk; the objectives, policies and processes for managing
the risk and the methods used to measure the risk.

21C.

Fair value of financial instruments
The analyses of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 are disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial statements. These include
both the significant financial instruments stated at amortised cost and at fair value in the statement of
45
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21.

Financial instruments: information on financial risks (continued)
financial position. The carrying values of current financial instruments approximate their fair values
due to the short-term maturity of these instruments and the disclosures of fair value are not made when
the carrying amount of current financial instruments is a reasonable approximation of the fair value.

21D.

Credit risk on financial assets
Financial assets that are potentially subject to concentrations of credit risk and failures by counterparties
to discharge their obligations in full or in a timely manner consist principally of cash balances with
banks, cash equivalents, receivables and certain other financial assets. The maximum exposure to
credit risk is: the total of the fair value of the financial assets; the maximum amount the entity could
have to pay if the guarantee is called on; and the full amount of any payable commitments at the end
of the reporting year. Credit risk on cash balances with banks and any other financial instruments
is limited because the counter-parties are entities with acceptable credit ratings. Credit risk on other
financial assets is limited because the other parties are entities with acceptable credit ratings. For credit
risk on receivables an ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of the debtors
and a loss from impairment is recognised in profit or loss. The exposure to credit risk with customers
is controlled by setting limits on the exposure to individual customers and these are disseminated to
the relevant persons concerned and compliance is monitored by management. There is no significant
concentration of credit risk on receivables, as the exposure is spread over a large number of counterparties and customers unless otherwise disclosed in the notes to the financial statements below. There
is significant concentration of credit risk on receivables, as the exposure is spread over a small number
of counter-parties and customers.
Note 18 discloses the maturity of the cash and cash equivalents balances.
Other receivables are normally with no fixed terms and therefore there is no maturity.

21E.

Liquidity risk – financial liabilities maturity analysis
The following table analyses financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturity (contractual and
undiscounted cash flows):
Less than
1 year
$

Non-derivative financial liabilities:
2016:
Gross borrowing commitments
Trade and other payables
At end of year

171,935
171,935

2015:
Trade and other payables
At end of year

441,064
441,064
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21.

Financial instruments: information on financial risks (continued)

21E.

Liquidity risk – financial liabilities maturity analysis (continued)
Liquidity risk refers to the difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. It is expected that all the liabilities will be paid
at their contractual maturity. The average credit period taken to settle trade payables is about 30 days
(2015: 30 days). In order to meet such cash commitments the operating activity is expected to generate
sufficient cash inflows.

21F.

Interest rate risk
The effect of interest rate risk is not significant to the association.

21G.

Foreign currency risk
The effect of foreign currency risk is not significant to the association.

21H.

Equity price risk
There are investments in equity shares or similar instruments. As a result, such investments are exposed
to both currency risk and market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the
investment securities. The fair values of those assets as at the end of the reporting year are disclosed in
Note 15.

22.

Capital commitments
Estimated amounts committed at the end of the reporting year for future capital expenditure but not
recognised in the financial statements are as follows:

Commitments to construct a building as Construction in
Progress in Note 14.
23.

2016
$

2015
$

884,295

5,490,934

Operating lease income commitments - lessee
At the end of the reporting year, the total of future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases are as follows
2016
2015
$
$
Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Rental income for the year

59,300
-

137,150
45,000

129,150

212,566

The operating lease income represents rental income receivable for certain of the association’s property
premises. The lease term is negotiated for an average term of two to three years.
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24.

Changes and adoption of financial reporting standards
For the current reporting year new or revised Singapore Financial Reporting Standards and the related
Interpretations to FRS (“INT FRS”) were issued by the Singapore Accounting Standards Council.
Those applicable to the reporting entity are listed below. These applicable new or revised standards
did not require any modification of the measurement methods or the presentation in the financial
statements.
FRS No.

Title

Various

Improvements to FRSs (Issued in January 2014). Relating to
FRS 113 Fair Value Measurement
FRS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

Various

25.

FRS 24 Related Party Disclosures
Improvements to FRSs (Issued in February 2014). Relating to
FRS 113 Fair Value Measurement

New or amended standards in issue but not yet effective
For the future reporting years new or revised Singapore Financial Reporting Standards and the related
Interpretations to FRS (“INT FRS”) were issued by the Singapore Accounting Standards Council and
these will only be effective for future reporting years. Those applicable to the reporting entity for
future reporting years are listed below. The transfer to the applicable new or revised standards from
the effective dates is not expected to result in material adjustments to the financial position, results of
operations, or cash flows for the following year.

FRS No.

Title

FRS 109

Financial Instruments

Effective date for
periods beginning
on or after
1 Jan 2018
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Statement By The Board Of Trustees
Singapore Khalsa Association Trustees

In the opinion of the Board of Trustees,

(a) the accompanying statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of financial
position, statement of changes in funds, statements of cash flows, and notes thereto are drawn up
so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Singapore Khalsa Association Trustees
(“Trustees”) as at 30 June 2016 and of the results, changes in funds and cash flows of the Trustee for
the reporting year ended; and
(b) at the date of this statement there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Trustees will be able to pay
its debts as and when they fall due.

The Board of Trustees approved and authorised these financial statements for issue.

On behalf of the Board of Trustees

ON BEHALF OF THE DIRECTORS

...........................................………....
Gurdip Singh Usma
Chairman

...........................................………....
Col (Ret) Gurcharan Singh Sekhon
Vice Chairman

23 September 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Singapore Khalsa Association Trustees

Report on the financial statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Singapore Khalsa Association Trustees (“Trustees”),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2016, and the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, statement of changes in funds and statement of cash flows for the reporting year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.
Board of trustees’ responsibility for the financial statements
Board of Trustees is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with the provisions of the Societies Act (the “Act”) and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards,
and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are
properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair financial
statements and to maintain accountability of assets.
Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
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Singapore Khalsa Association Trustees

– 2 –

Opinion
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions
of the Act and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards so as to give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Trustees as at 30 June 2016 and the financial performance, changes in funds and cash flows of
the Trustees for the reporting year ended on that date.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the regulations enacted under the Societies Act
to be kept by the Trustees have been properly kept in accordance with those regulations.

RSM Chio Lim LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore
23 September 2016
Partner in charge of audit: Ng Thiam Soon
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2016

2015

$

$

450,472

510,988

1,522,835

170,092

36

29

1,973,343

681,109

–

(4,000)

Agent’s fees

(14,350)

(20,188)

Other losses

–

(5,350)

(14,350)

(29,538)

Net surplus

1,958,993

651,571

Fair value loss on available-for-sale assets

(2,982,363)

(203,820)

Net (deficit)/surplus before appropriation and transfer

(1,023,370)

447,751

Appropriation to Singapore Khalsa Association

(5,500,000)

(2,068,667)

Net deficit after appropriation and transfer

(6,523,370)

(1,620,916)

Income
Dividend income
Gain on disposal of investments
Interest income
Expenditure
Administrative expenses

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Note
ASSETS

2016

2015

$

$

Non-current assets
Available-for-sale financial assets

4

Total non-current assets

5,732,157

11,975,833

5,732,157

11,975,833

4,227

283,921

4,227

283,921

5,736,384

12,259,754

577,708

577,708

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents

5

Total current assets
Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital – The Singapore Khalsa Association
(“SKA”)
Funds:
Lease fund

6

550,000

475,000

Trust fund retained by SKA Trustees

6

2,965,131

6,581,138

Total funds

3,515,131

7,056,138

Fair value reserve

1,643,545

4,625,908

Total equity

5,736,384

12,259,754

Total equity and liability

5,736,384

12,259,754

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

55

Singapore Khalsa Association

Annual Report 2015 / 2016

Statement of Changes in Funds
Year Ended 30 June 2016

Trust fund
retained by
SKA
Trustee
$

Lease
Capital

fund

$

$

Opening balance at 1 July 2015

577,708

475,000

Net surplus/(deficit) for the year
Appropriation to Singapore
Khalsa Association
Transfer to lease fund

–

– 1,958,993

–

– (5,500,000)

–

75,000

Closing balance at 30 June 2016

577,708

550,000

Opening balance at 1 July 2014

577,708

Net surplus/(deficit) for the year
Appropriation to Singapore
Khalsa Association
Transfer to lease fund

–

–

–

– (2,068,667)

–

75,000

Closing balance at 30 June 2015

577,708

475,000

Fair value
reserve

Total

$

$

Current year:
6,581,138

4,625,908

12,259,754

(2,982,363) (1,023,370)
–

(5,500,000)

(75,000)

–

–

2,965,131

1,643,545

5,736,384

400,000 8,073,234

4,829,728

13,880,670

Previous year:
651,571

(203,820)
–

(2,068,667)

(75,000)

–

–

6,581,138

4,625,908

12,259,754

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2016
$

2015
$

(3,541,007)

(1,417,096)

(450,472)

(510,988)

(1,522,835)

(170,092)

(36)

(29)

(5,514,350)

(2,098,205)

Purchase of available-for-sale assets

(112,053)

(103,177)

Disposal of available-for-sale assets

4,896,201

984,586

450,472

510,988

36

29

5,234,656

1,392,426

(279,694)

(705,779)

283,921

989,700

4,227

283,921

Cash flows from operating activities
Net deficit after appropriation
Dividend income
Gain on disposal of investments
Interest income
Net cash flows used in operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Dividends received
Interest received
Net cash flows from investing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, statement of cash flows, beginning
balance
Cash and cash equivalents, statement of cash flows, ending
balance (Note 5)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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1.

General
The financial statements are presented in Singapore dollars. The financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Trustees on the date of statement by Board of Trustees.
The principal activities of the Trustees are to hold and manage the investment of the Singapore Khalsa
Association.
The registered office is: 2 Tessensohn Road, Singapore 217646. The Trustees is situated in Singapore.
Accounting convention
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Singapore Financial Reporting
Standards (“FRS”) and the related Interpretations to FRS (“INT FRS”) as issued by the Singapore
Accounting Standards Council and the Companies Act, Chapter 50. The financial statements are
prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention except where an FRS requires an
alternative treatment (such as fair values) as disclosed where appropriate in these financial statements.
Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting year. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. The estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Apart
from those involving estimations, management has made judgements in the process of applying the
entity’s accounting policies. The areas requiring management’s most difficult, subjective or complex
judgements, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are
disclosed at the end of this footnote, where applicable.
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2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

2A.

Significant accounting policies
Revenue recognition
The revenue amount is the fair value of the consideration received or receivable from the gross inflow
of economic benefits during the reporting year arising from the course of the activities of the entity
and it is shown net of related sales taxes and rebates. Interest is recognised using the effective interest
method. Dividend from equity instruments is recognised as income when the entity’s right to receive
payment is established.
Foreign currency transactions
The functional currency is the Singapore dollar as it reflects the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates. Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in the functional currency at the rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. At each end of the reporting year, recorded monetary balances
and balances measured at fair value that are denominated in non-functional currencies are reported at the
rates ruling at the end of the reporting year and fair value measurement dates respectively. All realised and
unrealised exchange adjustment gains and losses are dealt with in profit or loss except when recognised
in other comprehensive income and if applicable deferred in equity such as for qualifying cash flow
hedges. The presentation is in the functional currency.
Financial assets
Initial recognition, measurement and derecognition:
A financial asset is recognised on the statement of financial position when, and only when, the
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The initial recognition of
financial assets is at fair value normally represented by the transaction price. The transaction price for
financial asset not classified at fair value through profit or loss includes the transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset. Transaction costs incurred on
the acquisition or issue of financial assets classified at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
immediately. The transactions are recorded at the trade date. When the settlement date accounting is
applied, any change in the fair value of the asset to be received during the period between the trade date
and the settlement date is recognised in net profit or loss for assets classified as trading.

59

Singapore Khalsa Association

Annual Report 2015 / 2016

Notes to the Financial Statements
30 June 2016

2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (continued)

2A. Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Irrespective of the legal form of the transactions performed, financial assets are derecognised when they
pass the “substance over form” based on the derecognition test prescribed by FRS 39 relating to the
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership and the transfer of control. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is
currently a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
Subsequent measurement:
Subsequent measurement based on the classification of the financial assets in one of the following
categories under FRS 39 is as follows:
1.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: As at end of the reporting year date there
were no financial assets classified in this category.

2.

Loans and receivables: Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Assets that are for sale
immediately or in the near term are not classified in this category. These assets are carried at
amortised costs using the effective interest method (except that short-duration receivables with
no stated interest rate are normally measured at original invoice amount unless the effect of
imputing interest would be significant) minus any reduction (directly or through the use of an
allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility. Impairment charges are provided only
when there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that
loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. The methodology ensures that an
impairment loss is not recognised on the initial recognition of an asset. Losses expected as a
result of future events, no matter how likely, are not recognised. For impairment, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced through use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss
is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised. Typically the trade
and other receivables are classified in this category.

3.

Held-to-maturity financial assets: As at end of the reporting year date there were no financial
assets classified in this category.
60

Singapore Khalsa Association

Annual Report 2015 / 2016

Notes to the Financial Statements
30 June 2016

2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (continued)

2A. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued):
4.

Available-for-sale financial assets: These are non-derivative financial assets that are designated
as available-for-sale on initial recognition or are not classified in one of the previous categories.
These assets are carried at fair value. Changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
(other than those relating to foreign exchange translation differences on monetary investments)
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate component of
equity under the heading revaluation reserves. Such reserves are reclassified to profit or loss
when realised through disposal. When there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, the
cumulative loss is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. A
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of an equity
instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss, it is reversed against revaluation reserves and
is not subsequently reversed through profit or loss. However for debt instruments classified as
available-for-sale impairment losses recognised in profit or loss are subsequently reversed if an
increase in the fair value of the instrument can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the recognition of the impairment loss. For non-equity instruments classified as available-for-sale
the reversal of impairment is recognised in profit or loss. The weighted average method is used
when determining the cost basis of publicly listed equities being disposed of. The financial assets
are classified as non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of the investments
within 12 months of the end of the reporting year. Usually non-current investments in equity
shares and debt securities are classified in this category but it does not include subsidiaries, joint
ventures, or associates. Unquoted investments are stated at cost less allowance for impairment
in value where there are no market prices, and management is unable to establish fair value
by using valuation techniques except that where management can establish fair value by using
valuation techniques the relevant unquoted investments are stated at fair value. For unquoted
equity instruments impairment losses are not reversed.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include bank and cash balances, on demand deposits and any highly liquid
debt instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less. For the statement
of cash flows the item includes cash and cash equivalents less cash subject to restriction and bank
overdrafts payable on demand that form an integral part of cash management.

61

Singapore Khalsa Association

Annual Report 2015 / 2016

Notes to the Financial Statements
30 June 2016

2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (continued)

2A.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition, measurement and derecognition:
A financial liability is recognised on the statement of financial position when, and only when, the
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and it is derecognised when
the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. The initial recognition of
financial liability is at fair value normally represented by the transaction price. The transaction price for
financial liability not classified at fair value through profit or loss includes the transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs incurred on
the acquisition or issue of financial liability classified at fair value through profit or loss are expensed
immediately. The transactions are recorded at the trade date. Financial liabilities including bank and
other borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless there is an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting year.
Subsequent measurement:
Subsequent measurement based on the classification of the financial liabilities in one of the following
two categories under FRS 39 is as follows:
1.

Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: Liabilities are classified in this category when they
are incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term (trading
liabilities) or are derivatives (except for a derivative that is a designated and effective hedging
instrument) or have been classified in this category because the conditions are met to use
the “fair value option” and it is used. Financial guarantee contracts if significant are initially
recognised at fair value and are subsequently measured at the greater of (a) the amount measured
in accordance with FRS 37 and (b) the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with FRS 18. All changes in fair value
relating to liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

2.

Other financial liabilities: All liabilities, which have not been classified as in the previous category
fall into this residual category. These liabilities are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Trade and other payables and borrowings are usually classified in this category.
Items classified within current trade and other payables are not usually re-measured, as the
obligation is usually known with a high degree of certainty and settlement is short-term.

Fair value measurement
Fair value is taken to be the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date (that is, an exit price).
It is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement. When measuring fair value,
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2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (continued)

2A.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)
management uses the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability
under current market conditions, including assumptions about risk. The entity’s intention to hold an
asset or to settle or otherwise fulfil a liability is not taken into account as relevant when measuring fair
value. In making the fair value measurement, management determines the following: (a) the particular
asset or liability being measured (these are identified and disclosed in the relevant notes below); (b) for
a non-financial asset, the highest and best use of the asset and whether the asset is used in combination
with other assets or on a stand-alone basis; (c) the market in which an orderly transaction would take
place for the asset or liability; and (d) the appropriate valuation techniques to use when measuring fair
value. The valuation techniques used maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise
unobservable inputs. These inputs are consistent with the inputs a market participant may use when
pricing the asset or liability.
The fair value measurements and related disclosures categorise the inputs to valuation techniques
used to measure fair value by using a fair value hierarchy of three levels. These are recurring fair value
measurements unless state otherwise in the relevant notes to the financial statements. Level 1 inputs
are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date. Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 3 inputs are
unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. The level is measured on the basis of the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. Transfers between levels of the fair value
hierarchy are deemed to have occurred at the beginning of the reporting year. If a financial instrument
measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, the price within the bid-ask spread or midmarket pricing that is most representative of fair value in the circumstances is used to measure fair
value regardless of where the input is categorised within the fair value hierarchy. If there is no market,
or the markets available are not active, the fair value is established by using an acceptable valuation
technique.
The carrying values of current financial instruments approximate their fair values due to the short-term
maturity of these instruments and the disclosures of fair value are not made when the carrying amount
of current financial instruments is a reasonable approximation of the fair value. The fair values of noncurrent financial instruments may not be disclosed separately unless there are significant differences at
the end of the reporting year and in the event the fair values are disclosed in the relevant notes to the
financial statements.
Provisions
A liability or provision is recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. A provision is made using best estimates of the amount required in settlement and
63

Singapore Khalsa Association

Annual Report 2015 / 2016

Notes to the Financial Statements
30 June 2016

2.

Significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (continued)

2A.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Provisions (continued)
where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount recognised is the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The
increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense. Changes in estimates
are reflected in profit or loss in the reporting year they occur.

2B.

Critical judgements, assumptions and estimation uncertainties
There were no critical judgements made in the process of applying the accounting policies that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. There were no key
assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting year, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next reporting year.

3.

Related party relationships and transactions
FRS 24 on related party disclosures requires the reporting entity to disclose: (a) transactions with its
related parties; and (b) relationships between parents and subsidiaries irrespective of whether there
have been transactions between those related parties. A party is related to a party if the party controls,
or is controlled by, or can significantly influence or is significantly influenced by the other party.
It is not the normal practice for the members of the Board of Trustees or people connected with them,
to receive remuneration, or other benefits, from the Trustees for which they are responsible, or from
institutions connected with the Trustees.
There are no significant related party transactions for the financial year ended 30 June 2015 and 2016.

4.

Available-for-sale financial assets
2016
$

2015
$

11,975,833

12,890,970

Additions

112,053

103,177

Disposals

(3,373,366)

(814,494)

Decrease in fair value through equity

(2,982,363)

(203,820)

5,732,157

11,975,833

Movements during the year:
Fair value at beginning of year

Fair value at end of year (Level 1)
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4.

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)
Level

2016
$

2015
$

Balance is made up of:
Investments managed by fund manager:
Hedge fund investments – High-yield debt
securities

1

Real estate investment trust

1

1,879,381

3,332,244

Property industry

1

679,756

1,005,666

Finance industry

1

2,096,520

2,774,658

Marine industry

1

484,000

1,001,680

Media industry

1

592,500

1,428,000

Others
Total investments available-for-sale at fair value
through other comprehensive income
Cost of quoted equity investments

1

–

1,028,524

Quoted equity shares: Singapore

–

1,405,062

5,732,157

11,975,834

4,076,256

7,349,927

Fair value loss of S$2,982,363 (2015: S$203,820) was recognised directly in equity.

5.

Cash and cash equivalents

Not restricted in use

6.

4,227

283,921

Funds
Funds of the trustees include the following:
(i)

Lease fund
Lease fund is maintained to be used for future redevelopment purposes of the leasehold
property occupied by SKA. The current land lease will expire in June 2028.

(ii)

Trust fund retained by SKA Trustees
Trust fund retained by SKA Trustees is retained surpluses generated from Trustees’ Available-forSale Assets during the current and previous financial years.
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7.

Financial instruments: information on financial risks

7A.

Categories of financial assets and liabilities
The following table categorises the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities recorded at the
end of the reporting year:
2016
$

2015
$

Financial assets:
Cash and bank balances

4,227

283,921

Available-for-sale financial assets

5,732,157

11,975,833

At end of year

5,736,384

12,259,754

Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these financial statements.
7B.

Financial risk management
The main purpose for holding or issuing financial instruments is to raise and manage the finances for
the entity’s operating, investing and financing activities. There is exposure to the financial risks on the
financial instruments such as credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk comprising interest rate, currency
risk and price risk exposures. The management has certain practices for the management of financial
risks. However these are not documented in formal written documents. The following guidelines are
followed: All financial risk management activities are carried out and monitored by senior management
staff. All financial risk management activities are carried out following good market practices.
There have been no changes to the exposures to risk; the objectives, policies and processes for managing
the risk and the methods used to measure the risk.

7C

Fair value of financial instruments
The analyses of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 are disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial statements. These include
both the significant financial instruments stated at amortised cost and at fair value in the statement of
financial position. The carrying values of current financial instruments approximate their fair values
due to the short-term maturity of these instruments and the disclosures of fair value are not made when
the carrying amount of current financial instruments is a reasonable approximation of the fair value.

7D.

Liquidity risk – financial liabilities maturity analysis
Liquidity risk refers to the difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. It is expected that all the liabilities will be paid
at their contractual maturity. The average credit period taken to settle trade payables is about 30 days
(2014: 30 days).
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7.

Financial instruments: information on financial risks (continued)

7E.

Interest rate risk
The effect of interest rate risk is not significant to the Trustees.

7F.

Foreign currency risk
The effect of foreign currency risk is not significant to the Trustees.

7G.

Equity price risk
There are investments in equity shares or similar instruments. As a result, such investments are
exposed to both currency risk and market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of
the investment securities. The fair values of those assets as at the end of the reporting year are disclosed
in Note 4.

8.

Changes and adoption of financial reporting standards
For the current reporting year new or revised Singapore Financial Reporting Standards and the related
Interpretations to FRS (“INT FRS”) were issued by the Singapore Accounting Standards Council.
Those applicable to the reporting entity are listed below. These applicable new or revised standards
did not require any modification of the measurement methods or the presentation in the financial
statements.
FRS No.

Title

Various

Improvements to FRSs (Issued in January 2014). Relating to
FRS 113 Fair Value Measurement
FRS 24 Related Party Disclosures
Improvements to FRSs (Issued in February 2014). Relating to
FRS 113 Fair Value Measurement

Various

9.

New or amended standards in issue but not yet effective
For the future reporting years new or revised Singapore Financial Reporting Standards and the related
Interpretations to FRS (“INT FRS”) were issued by the Singapore Accounting Standards Council and
these will only be effective for future reporting years. Those applicable to the reporting entity for
future reporting years are listed below. The transfer to the applicable new or revised standards from
the effective dates is not expected to result in material adjustments to the financial position, results of
operations, or cash flows for the following year.
FRS No.

Title

FRS 109

Financial Instruments

Effective date for periods
beginning on or after
1 Jan 2018
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